
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 18, 2025 
 

Regular Meeting – 6:00 p.m. 
 

Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
DEBBIE SWANSON 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

JOHN P. NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON 

LARESHA THORNTON 
 



 

DEPARTMENTAL 

REPORTS 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

222 South Ford Boulevard, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
Phone 734-544-4225          Fax 734-544-4195 

 
 
 

MONTHLY REPORT FOR FEBRUARY 2025 
 
 
 

Fire Department staffing levels are as follows: 
 
 1 Fire Chief   1 Fire Marshall  3 Shift Captains 
      21 Fire Fighters  3 Shift Lieutenants  1 Clerk III/Staff Support 
 
 
 

 
All fire department response personnel are licensed as Emergency Medical Technicians 
by the State of Michigan Public Health. During the month, the fire department responded 
to 396 requests for assistance. Of those requests, 249 were medical emergency service 
calls, with the remaining 147 incidents classified as non-medical and/or fire related. 

 

 
Department activities for the month of February 2025: 

1) Smoke Alarms 

 
1559 Andrea  1470 Evelyn   1648 Phyllis 
8609 Shawn   1368 Harry   527 Lynne  
7553 Oakland Hills 1966 Mary Catherine 1846 Tyler 
1181 Lexington 2764 Peachcrest  535 Miami 
505 Kewanee 347 Devonshire  1724 S Grove  

 
2) Fire fighters received training in the following areas: 

a)  Blue Card  
b)  TRT Training 
c)  Hazmat Training 

 

 
3) Pub Education 

a)  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Monthly Report – February 2025 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
The Fire Marshal had these activities / events for the month of February 2025: 

1. Fire Investigations:  1 
2. Fire Investigations interview:   
3. Fire Investigations follow up:     
4. Food Truck Development Program: 4 
5. Food Truck Inspections:  1 
6. Flow Test:    
7. Building Inspections:  12  
8. Building Re-inspections:  
9. Memo/Letter writing:  5 
10. Fire Lane Enforcement:      
11. Liquor Inspections: ·2 
12. Junk Yard Inspections:  2 
13. Business Tour:   
14. Plan Reviews: 4 
15. Site Plan Reviews:  4    
16. Hood/ Fire Suppression Inspections:   1    
17. Occupant Load Certificate: 2 
18. Pre-Application Meeting:  1 
19. Meetings: 6 
20. Fire Alarm Test/Inspections:   4  
21. Burn Permits:  3 
22. Chief Meetings I attended:  1       
23. Zoom Meeting:  
24. Burn Complaints:   
25. Knox Box: 2 
26. Fire Drills: 1  
27. Training:  1  
28. Business/Community Engagement:   4       
29. Citizen Engagement: 5 
30. New Construction Site Visit:   
31. Addressing:  2 
32. Code Research: Weekly 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Monthly Report – February 2025 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
The Fire Chief attended these meetings / events for the month of February 2025: 
 
 

• Multiple 911 responses 
• Fuel Reports  
• Attending township board meetings 
• Worked/secured the Bid for the New Fire Marshal staff vehicle 
• Attending County Fire Chiefs’ meeting 
• Taught Blue card fire ground safety 
• Working with the Township Attorney on broken underground water pipe at headquarters, 

lost radios and upcoming grievance's 
• Completed second week of advanced academy- (two more to go) 
• Monthly officers meeting 
• Review and update EMS Protocol 
• Promoted to individuals one to Captain, one to Lt. 
• Several zoom calls regarding the new State of Michigan Reporting system, prepping for 

December launch date  
• Working with Human Resources for interviews of new hires 
• Several smoke alarm instalments in residential homes under the new shared opportunity 

with the State of Michigan State Fire Marshals Office  

 
 
 
 
 
The fire department stands ready to serve the community and the citizens at large of Ypsilanti 
Township. Thank you for allowing us to serve. 
 
 
 
 
There were 0 injuries, and 0 deaths reported this month for civilians. 
There were 0 injuries, and 0 deaths reported this month for Fire Fighters. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Monthly Report – February 2025 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

This month the total fire loss, including vehicle fires, is estimated at $476,100.00.  
All occurred at the following locations: 

 
 
       DATE OF LOSS     ADDRESS         ESTIMATED VALUE 
 

 02/03/2025  1117 Davis St      $              0.00  (Outside Fire) 
            02/14/2025  280 Fairway Drive    $              0.00  (Cooking Fire) 

 02/18/2025  3089 Woodland Hills Dr   $              0.00  (Mutual Aid/Pittsfield)  
 02/19/2025  211 Stevens Dr    $ 1,100.00 (Trash Fire) 
 02/20/2025  7028 Judd Road    $        0.00  (Mutual Aid/Augusta)  
 02/24/2025  8117 S Autumn Woods Tr   $              0.00  (Mutual Aid/Superior) 
 02/27/2025  2484 Carriage Way    $   475,000.00  (Building Fire)  

 
Respectfully submitted 
 
 
Maria Batianis 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department 

 
  Attachment:  Image Trend Incident Type Report for 02/1/2025 – 02/28/2025      



Elite ytfd Monthly Incident Report's 2024  

Basic Incident Type Code And
Description (FD1.21)

Total
Incidents

Total Incidents Percent of
Incidents

Total
Property

Loss

Total Content
Loss

Total Loss Total Loss Percent
of Total

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 1 - Fire

111 - Building fire 4 1.01% 350,000.00 125,000.00 475,000.00 99.77%

113 - Cooking fire, confined to container 1 0.25%     

118 - Trash or rubbish fire, contained 1 0.25% 1,000.00 100.00 1,100.00 0.23%

150 - Outside rubbish fire, other 1 0.25% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

151 - Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire 1 0.25% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

 Total:  8 Total:  2.02% Total: 
351,000.00

Total: 
125,100.00

Total: 
476,100.00

Total:  100.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 3 - Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident

300 - Rescue, EMS incident, other 5 1.26%     

311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 97 24.49%     

320 - Emergency medical service, other 21 5.30%     

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle
accident with injury

108 27.27%     

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 5 1.26%     

324 - Motor vehicle accident with no
injuries.

10 2.53%     

331 - Lock-in (if lock out , use 511 ) 1 0.25%     

354 - Trench/below-grade rescue 1 0.25%     

381 - Rescue or EMS standby 1 0.25%     

 Total:  249 Total:  62.88% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 4 - Hazardous Condition (No Fire)

400 - Hazardous condition, other 2 0.51%     

410 - Combustible/flammable gas/liquid
condition, other

1 0.25%     

412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 2 0.51%     

424 - Carbon monoxide incident 1 0.25%     

440 - Electrical  wiring/equipment
problem, other

1 0.25%     

442 - Overheated motor 1 0.25%     

444 - Power line down 2 0.51%     

 Total:  10 Total:  2.53% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 5 - Service Call

500 - Service call, other 4 1.01%     

520 - Water problem, other 1 0.25%     

522 - Water or steam leak 3 0.76%     

531 - Smoke or odor removal 2 0.51%     

550 - Public service assistance, other 8 2.02%     

551 - Assist police or other governmental
agency

2 0.51%     

554 - Assist invalid 7 1.77%     

571 - Cover assignment, standby,
moveup

1 0.25%     

 Total:  28 Total:  7.07% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 6 - Good Intent Call

600 - Good intent call, other 4 1.01%     

611 - Dispatched and cancelled en route 67 16.92%     

622 - No incident found on arrival at
dispatch address

1 0.25%     

651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 3 0.76%     

 Total:  75 Total:  18.94% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 7 - False Alarm & False Call

700 - False alarm or false call, other 8 2.02%     

711 - Municipal alarm system, malicious
false alarm

1 0.25%     

735 - Alarm system sounded due to 4 1.01%     

Printed On: 03/11/2025 02:10:38 PM1 of 2



Basic Incident Type Code And
Description (FD1.21)

Total
Incidents

Total Incidents Percent of
Incidents

Total
Property

Loss

Total Content
Loss

Total Loss Total Loss Percent
of Total

malfunction

736 - CO detector activation due to
malfunction

5 1.26%     

744 - Detector activation, no fire -
unintentional

2 0.51%     

745 - Alarm system activation, no fire -
unintentional

3 0.76%     

746 - Carbon monoxide detector
activation, no CO

3 0.76%     

 Total:  26 Total:  6.57% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

 Total:  396 Total:  100.00% Total: 
351,000.00

Total: 
125,100.00

Total: 
476,100.00

Total:  100.00%

Printed On: 03/11/2025 02:10:38 PM2 of 2



 

 

 “Together, we are committed to creating a safer, more just and compassionate Washtenaw County for all.” 

 2201 Hogback Road ◆ Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732 ◆ OFFICE  (734) 971-8400 ◆ FAX  (734) 973-4624 ◆ EMAIL sheriffinfo@washtenaw.org 

Washtenaw County 
Office of the Sheriff 

Est. 1823 

Alyshia M. Dyer, Sheriff 
 

  

To: Brenda Stumbo, Ypsilanti Township Supervisor 
From: Shane Peltier, Police Services Lieutenant 
Cc: Ypsilanti Township Board  
 Gary Lowe, WCSO Police Services Commander  
 Nancy Hansen, WCSO Police Services Captain 
 Nicholas Krings, WCSO Police Services A/Captain 
Date: March 6, 2025 
Re: February 2025 Police Services Monthly Report 
 
SUMMARY: 
During February 2025, there were 2,713 calls for service in Ypsilanti Township. In February 2024, there 
were 3,201 calls for service in Ypsilanti Township. 
 
OPERATIONS 
During February 2025, Patrol Operations responded to calls for service, conducted traffic enforcement, 
and completed criminal investigations in support of our citizen’s quality of life. 
 
In February 2025, there were 5 home invasions, which is a 29% decrease as compared to February 2024 
(7 home invasions). In many of these incidents, domestic relationships and unauthorized entry were 
common. The best prevention methods for a typical residential home invasion are to keep all windows 
and doors locked (including vehicles in the driveway), including deadbolts, while away from home. 
External lighting and visual deterrents such as “Beware of Dog” or alarm signage also discourages 
criminals. 
 
In February 2025, there were 2 breaking and entering’s. In the month of February 2024, we saw 4 
breaking and entering (50% decrease).   
 
In February 2025, there were 6 reported UDAAs. This is a 40% decrease compared to February 2024, 
when there were 10 reported UDAAs. Many of these vehicle thefts occurred when the suspect gained 
entry to an unlocked vehicle. Citizens are reminded to lock all vehicle doors and keep ignition keys in 
separate and secure areas to prevent such thefts. Valuables, if left in a vehicle, should be placed in a 
concealed location. Many vehicles that are being targeted are Hyundai and Kia makes due to well-known 
theft practices. The following website provides further information regarding the reduction of potential 
for theft of your vehicle, common vehicles targeted, and further information. 
  
 https://www.nhtsa.gov/road-safety/vehicle-theft-prevention  
 
YOUTH INITIATIVE 
The Sheriff’s Office continues to partner with courts, probation, and social services to ensure that there 
is accountability beyond the Sheriff’s Office contact with the offenders that are consistently involved in 

https://www.nhtsa.gov/road-safety/vehicle-theft-prevention


 

 “Together, we are committed to creating a safer, more just, and compassionate Washtenaw County for all.” 

 2201 Hogback Road ◆ Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732 ◆ OFFICE  (734) 971-8400 ◆ FAX  (734) 973-4624 ◆ EMAIL sheriffinfo@washtenaw.org 

crimes.  From a year-to-year perspective, comparing 2024 to 2025, our juvenile offenses and complaints 
are up 25.92% (from 27 to 34), and our runaway complaints are up 11.11% (from 9 to 10). 
 
COMMUNITY ACTION TEAM   
The purpose of the Community Action Team (CAT) is to respond to situations involving or with a nexus 
of drugs, guns, or violence.  The team focuses on the timely assessment and response to tips they 
receive from our community and community problems identified through crime pattern analysis.  
 
CAT collaboration with the Michigan Department of Corrections in reference to parole compliance 
contributes to effective monitoring and management of parolees who live in our community.  Timely 
and efficient response to tips regarding parolee misconduct combined with regular unannounced home 
visits are expected by the parolees that reside in Ypsilanti Township and surrounding areas.  
 
For any violent crime tips related to guns, gang activity or violence in general please call 734-661-9034. 
 
 
WASHTENAW ALERT (EVERBRIDGE) 
As a reminder for residents, they can sign up for “Up-to-the-minute updates” from the Washtenaw 
County Sheriff’s Office by email or cell phone at www.washtenaw.org/alerts 
 
HOUSE WATCH 
If you plan on being gone for a period of time sign your house up for house checks.  The house watch 
form can be found at:  https://www.washtenaw.org/1743/House-Watch 
 
NEW FACES 
The Sheriff’s Office is hiring!  We continue to hire highly qualified, motivated, and diverse people that 
are committed to pursuing our mission:  Together, we are committed to creating a safer, more just, and 
compassionate Washtenaw County for all”. 
 
If you are interested in joining us in serving your community in Police Services, Corrections, 
Communications, Emergency Services or Community Corrections please check us out at:  
https://www.washtenaw.org/1124/Sheriff 
 
We have rewarding career opportunities available for those seeking a profession with a greater purpose. 
 

https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.washtenaw.org%2Falerts&data=02%7C01%7Cteetsc%40washtenaw.org%7Cf8689bdf108a4ba6257308d83e23fdd1%7C940f79927c85414e8cb10632dd3a5282%7C1%7C0%7C637327671714166397&sdata=ntMVps2wVcbhpVaG5pYdrMlGoG%2Bud83w%2FPLXC0iO9%2FQ%3D&reserved=0
https://www.washtenaw.org/1743/House-Watch
https://www.washtenaw.org/1124/Sheriff


  

YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP MONTHLY POLICE SERVICES DATA

February 2025

Traffic Stops 512 977 -48% 1042 1953 -47%

Citations 77 184 -58% 172 427 -60%

Drunk Driving (OWI) 2 6 -67% 8 15 -47%

Drugged Driving (OUID) 4 15 -73% 5 16 -69%

Calls for Service Total 2713 3201 -15% 5674 6981 -19%

Calls for Service                  
(Traffic stops and non-response 

medicals removed)

1721 1793 -4% 3644 3976 -8%

Robberies 2 0 + 5 2 150%

Assaultive Crimes 43 48 -10% 92 98 -6%

Home Invasions 5 7 -29% 15 11 36%

Breaking and Entering’s 2 4 -50% 4 5 -20%

Larcenies 17 27 -37% 36 45 -20%

Vehicle Thefts 6 10 -40% 17 25 -32%

Traffic Crashes 69 60 15% 127 147 -14%

Medical Assists 45 47 -4% 89 99 -10%

Animal Complaints           
(ACO Response)

33 32 3% 80 53 51%

In/Out of Area Time Month 
(minutes)

YTD 
(minutes)

Into Area Time 422 1202

Out of Area Time 1963 2329

Investigative Ops (DB) 21935 47390

Secondary Road Patrol 475 475

County Wide 5915 13535

Hours 

Accum.

Hours 

Used
Balance

Banked Hours 1182 TBD 162

+ = Positive Change                                                    

- = Negative Change

%    

Change
Incidents

Month 

2025

Month 

2024

%    

Change

YTD       

2025

YTD       

2024











February 2025 Ypsilanti Twp Call Report (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

Search Criteria: (This report counts for offenses but excludes UCR status of 'Unfounded'.)

Month: February

Year: 2025

City: Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

Page 1 of 5 Created On 03/06/2025 11:55 AM



February 2025 Ypsilanti Twp Call Report (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Feb/2025 Feb/2024 % CHG YTD 2025 YTD 2024 % CHG Feb/2025 YTD Feb/2024 YTD Feb YTD

09002 NEGLIGENT HOMICIDE/MANSLAUGHTER

(INVOLUNTARY)

0 0 0% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

10001 KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 0 1 -100% 1 2 -50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

10002 PARENTAL KIDNAPPING 0 1 -100% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11001 SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC lST

DEGREE

0 3 -100% 2 6 -66.6% 1 1 0 0 1 1

11002 SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC 3RD

DEGREE

0 2 -100% 0 2 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11003 SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC lST

DEGREE

0 1 -100% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11005 SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC IST DEGREE 0 0 0% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11007 SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 2ND DEGREE 0 1 -100% 2 3 -33.3% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11008 SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH DEGREE 0 2 -100% 0 4 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

12000 ROBBERY 2 0 0% 5 2 150% 1 2 0 0 1 2

13001 NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 25 26 -3.84% 49 50 -2% 15 22 0 0 15 22

13002 AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 18 20 -10% 43 41 4.878% 9 22 0 1 9 23

13003 INTIMIDATION/STALKING 5 5 0% 13 17 -23.5% 0 4 0 0 0 4

20000 ARSON 0 1 -100% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

21000 EXTORTION 0 2 -100% 2 4 -50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

22001 BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 6 9 -33.3% 16 13 23.07% 0 2 0 0 0 2

22002 BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent to

Commit)

1 3 -66.6% 3 4 -25% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23001 LARCENY -POCKETPICKING 0 1 -100% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23003 LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 3 11 -72.7% 9 19 -52.6% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23005 LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 7 10 -30% 14 14 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23006 LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE

PARTS/ACCESSORIES

4 2 100% 5 4 25% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23007 LARCENY -OTHER 4 6 -33.3% 9 12 -25% 1 1 0 0 1 1

24001 MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 6 12 -50% 16 25 -36% 1 1 0 0 1 1

Page 2 of 5 Created On 03/06/2025 11:55 AM



February 2025 Ypsilanti Twp Call Report (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Feb/2025 Feb/2024 % CHG YTD 2025 YTD 2024 % CHG Feb/2025 YTD Feb/2024 YTD Feb YTD

24002 MOTOR VEHICLE, AS STOLEN PROPERTY 2 1 100% 3 3 0% 0 0 1 1 1 1

25000 FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 0 0 0% 0 3 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26001 FRAUD -FALSE PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE

GAME

7 2 250% 10 5 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26002 FRAUD -CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER

MACHINE

2 0 0% 9 2 350% 0 1 0 0 0 1

26005 FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 1 2 -50% 5 4 25% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26007 FRAUD - IDENTITY THEFT 3 2 50% 8 7 14.28% 0 0 0 0 0 0

28000 STOLEN PROPERTY 5 2 150% 10 2 400% 1 3 0 0 1 3

29000 DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 12 17 -29.4% 25 41 -39.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

30002 RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 1 7 -85.7% 3 10 -70% 0 0 0 0 0 0

35001 VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ACT 6 5 20% 13 9 44.44% 2 4 0 2 2 6

35002 NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 0 2 -100% 2 3 -33.3% 0 1 0 0 0 1

37000 OBSCENITY 1 0 0% 1 1 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

40002 COMMERCIALIZED SEX -ASSISTING/PROMOTING

PROSTITUTION

1 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

52001 WEAPONS OFFENSE- CONCEALED 9 10 -10% 19 17 11.76% 2 7 0 2 2 9

52003 WEAPONS OFFENSE -OTHER 3 2 50% 3 3 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

72000 ANIMAL CRUELTY 0 1 -100% 1 1 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group A Totals 134 172 -22.0% 302 339 -10.9% 33 71 1 6 34 77

26006 FRAUD -BAD CHECKS 2 1 100% 5 1 400% 0 0 0 0 0 0

38001 FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 8 4 100% 17 7 142.8% 1 3 0 0 1 3

41002 LIQUOR VIOLATIONS -OTHER 1 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

48000 OBSTRUCTING POLICE 15 27 -44.4% 27 45 -40% 3 5 1 1 4 6

50000 OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 12 10 20% 28 28 0% 3 8 0 0 3 8

53001 DISORDERLY CONDUCT 0 2 -100% 3 3 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

53002 PUBLIC PEACE -OTHER 1 0 0% 1 1 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

54002 OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF LIQUOR

OR DRUGS

6 22 -72.7% 13 33 -60.6% 5 10 0 0 5 10

Page 3 of 5 Created On 03/06/2025 11:55 AM



February 2025 Ypsilanti Twp Call Report (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Feb/2025 Feb/2024 % CHG YTD 2025 YTD 2024 % CHG Feb/2025 YTD Feb/2024 YTD Feb YTD

55000 HEALTH AND SAFETY 0 1 -100% 1 2 -50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

57001 TRESPASS 1 3 -66.6% 4 3 33.33% 0 0 0 0 0 0

63000 VAGRANCY 0 1 -100% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

70000 JUVENILE RUNAWAY 3 5 -40% 10 9 11.11% 0 0 0 0 0 0

73000 MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL OFFENSE 2 4 -50% 5 4 25% 0 0 0 0 0 0

75000 SOLICITATION 0 0 0% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group B Totals 51 80 -36.2% 115 138 -16.6% 12 26 1 1 13 27

2800 JUVENILE OFFENSES AND COMPLAINTS 15 19 -21.0% 34 27 25.92% 0 0 0 0 0 0

2900 TRAFFIC OFFENSES 14 13 7.692% 23 32 -28.1% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3000 WARRANTS 20 34 -41.1% 37 64 -42.1% 11 25 0 0 11 25

3100 TRAFFIC CRASHES 81 85 -4.70% 156 212 -26.4% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3200 SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 155 218 -28.8% 323 465 -30.5% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3300 MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 584 612 -4.57% 1280 1478 -13.3% 0 2 0 0 0 2

3500 NON - CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 780 756 3.174% 1656 1974 -16.1% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3700 MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 582 997 -41.6% 1183 2423 -51.1% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3800 ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 44 74 -40.5% 99 143 -30.7% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3900 ALARMS 98 65 50.76% 228 251 -9.16% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group C Totals 2373 2873 -17.4% 5019 7069 -28.9% 11 27 0 0 11 27

4000 HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 0 1 -100% 2 2 0% 0 1 0 0 0 1

4100 NON-HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 0 1 -100% 1 1 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4200 PARKING CITATIONS 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4300 LICENSE / TITLE / REGISTRATION CITATIONS 0 1 -100% 1 2 -50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4500 MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 36 15 140% 72 31 132.2% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group D Totals 36 18 100% 77 36 113.8% 0 1 0 0 0 1

6000 MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 39 57 -31.5% 77 101 -23.7% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6100 MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 68 55 23.63% 150 121 23.96% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6300 CANINE ACTIVITIES 7 1 600% 14 2 600% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6500 CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES 5 6 -16.6% 7 12 -41.6% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Page 4 of 5 Created On 03/06/2025 11:55 AM



February 2025 Ypsilanti Twp Call Report (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Feb/2025 Feb/2024 % CHG YTD 2025 YTD 2024 % CHG Feb/2025 YTD Feb/2024 YTD Feb YTD

6600 COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 8 0 0% 10 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6700 INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 91 31 193.5% 189 77 145.4% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group F Totals 218 150 45.33% 447 313 42.81% 0 0 0 0 0 0

City : Ypsilanti Twp Totals 2812 3293 -14.6% 5960 7895 -24.5% 56 125 2 7 58 132

Page 5 of 5 Created On 03/06/2025 11:55 AM



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
 Gloria Peterson 

 Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

Date:   March 8, 2025 

To:   Clerk’s Office 

CC:   Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor 

From: Michael Saranen, Operation Manager 

      
Subject: Department Report (activities in February 2025)  

 

Activities: 

Ford Lake Dam (Hydro Station) 
 

General Operation Summary: 
The Hydro Station is operating safely and continues to get routine safety inspections 
and preventive maintenance. Operators had 1-hour call-in for the month.  
 
Average precipitation for the month of is around 2.08”, for this month NOAA 
recorded it to be 1.26”.   

 
Regulatory Status: 
  

For 2025- 
- DSSMR-  
- Owners Dam Safety Program Review/Update - Started 
- EAP annual update and test –  
- EAP First Responder Training - Started 
- WQ Report –  
- Nuisance Plant Plan Report –  
- Wildlife Plan Report -  
- Historical Activity Report –  
- Gate Certification -  
- Security Review –  
- FERC Security Inspection – Scheduled, May 
- FERC Annual Dam Safety Inspection – Scheduled, June 
- Annual DEQ Lake Operation Monitoring Report-  
- Spillway Assessment Action Plan - Filed, addressing comments by FERC, Ongoing 
- Public Safety Plan - Installing new safety signs, delayed 
- Fish & Sediment Analysis - Not required until 2033 
- Part 12 Comprehensive Analysis Inspection – Started, document review 
- Shoreline Erosion Survey –  



 

- Emergency generator testing/maintenance –  
- EAP Rewrite –  
- Owners Dam Safety Audit 
- 2025 Part 12D Comprehensive Analysis – Started, document review phase (due 

March 2027) 
 

Future Items: 
 

- Shoreline Restoration, Ford Lake Park 
- PMF Study for watershed – Discussing  
- Protective Relay testing – Due again 2031 
- Concrete repairs – On Hold 
- Windows/additional concrete repairs (powerhouse and dam) - TBD 
- EAP Tabletop and Functional Exercise – 2029 

 
Projects: 
 
Concrete Repairs- Delayed, approved by the Board to go out to bid. Construction was 
planned for summer 2023, however the cost came in doubled and the project will be 
rebid in coming months.  
 
Sluice Gate Stress Analysis- 2024, the FERC has requested a detailed study of the 
spillway gates. This is a common industry request from FERC as they continuously 
look at safety involving dams. The inspections were completed, and the engineer has 
identified some items for consideration. 
 
River Level Sensor 
Premature failure of this sensor has caused negative impact to the operation and 
emergency actions. Staff are working with engineers to fix the problem. In February, 
a radar style sensor was installed in parallel to the existing system. This new 
technology seems promising to help reduce the on-going cost and better system 
reliability. The testing period for the new sensor is 60 days. 
 
DTE/ITC Power Line Rebuild- ITC is planning a rebuild of the transmission line along 
Bridge Road. Project is planned in 2026 will likely take a couple of months to 
complete. We don’t know how this will impact Hydro’s operations. 
 
DTE Gas Line relocation- DTE has submitted plans to relocate the gas line attached to 
the bridge and dam. Project is in review and would be good project that reduces a 
risk hazard to the dam’s management and future concrete maintenance projects. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
Operation Summary 

 
2025 February YTD 5 Year Ave. 

Precipitation total (inches)1 1.26 2.52 35.8 
Days Online 28 59 362 

Net Generation MWH (estimated) 625.154 1,392.150 9,991.619 
Generation MWH lost (estimated)* 0 0 423.510 

    
After Hour Call In    

Water levels 1 2 36 
Mechanical/Electrical 0 0 4 

Other 0 0 2 
Totals 1 2 42 

 
 

Recent History 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 
Precipitation total 

(inches) 
41.4 40.0 26.37 36.65 34.76 

Days Online 359.7 360.0 363.5 363.4 366 
Generation MWH 

(estimated) 
10,722.7 10,524.5 9,185.151 9,336.397 10,189.347 

Generation MWH lost 
(estimated)* 

570.2 423.2 362.5 216.076 545.578 

      
After Hour Call In      

Water levels 69 33 36 22 20 
Mechanical/Electrical 4 9 0 3 6 

Other 2 0 4 2 1 
Totals 75 42 40 27 27 

 
 
1 Preliminary totals from NOAA for Detroit  
*losses related to scheduled & unscheduled maintenance and water quality 
discharges. 

 
Water Quality Summary: 
MOU with City of Ann Arbor 
The Parties share a common interest in eliminating and preventing nuisance blue 
green algae blooms in Ford and Belleville Lakes, and they acknowledge that 
information about water quality and conditions in the lakes is important to advancing 
their common interest. THEREFORE, the Parties enter into this Memorandum of 
Understanding to memorialize their understanding as to their efforts to cooperate and 



 

work together to monitor, collect, and share water quality information regarding Ford 
and Belleville Lakes. 
 
 
Work Plan 

- In development for 2025 
Current Activities 

- WQ equipment is being serviced 
- Defining a summer spilling practice 

 
Sluice Gate Usage Summary 
Releasing water from the sluice gates is primary done to maintain lake level when flow 
exceeds the powerhouse. At certain times, we can use the gates to help keep the lake 
mixed to maintain oxygen levels (effectiveness depends on several factors) at the 
bottom of the lake. 
 
The water quality monitoring begins on June 1st and will end on September 30th; 
operators monitor the water quality conditions and take readings as outline in the WQ 
Plan. The dam releases water from the bottom gates to maintain run of river and/or 
help with water quality in Ford Lake. The Federal License requires us to pass water 
with a minimum of 5mg/l of dissolved oxygen all the time.  Therefore, spilling from the 
bottom gates in the summer to improve the lake is not always possible. 
 

            Current Year       Current Year  Current Year       Current Year            Prior Yr. 
2025 Days Spilled         Lost KWH*     Lost KW $*       Lost KW $* 
January 0 0 0 0 
February 0 0 0 0 
March    0 
April    0 
May    $ 1,628 
June    $ 9,386 
July    $ 1,742 
August    $ 1,973 
September    $ 618 
October    0 
November    0 
December    0 
Totals 0 

 
0 $ 0     $ 15,347 

*Estimated losses from diverting water away from generators for the purpose of improving WQ. 

Sargent Charles Dam  
 
This dam continues to get routine safety inspections and appropriate maintenance. 
 



 

In October 2023, the dam was inspected by the state. In their report the dam is in 
satisfactory condition, the report listed some maintenance recommendations to 
help maintain a safe dam. Staff is working on the follow-up actions. 
 
 



APPROVAL OF AGENDA 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE•YPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO • CLERK DEBBIE SWANSON • TREASURER STAN ELDRIDGE 
TRUSTEES: • KAREN LOVEJOY ROE • JOHN P. NEWMAN II • GLORIA PETERSON • LARESHA THORNTON 
 
 

 REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
  TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2025 

6:00 P.M. 
 

Board Meetings are audio recorded and posted on the website. 
 
 

  DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 
 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF MARCH 4, 2025 REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MARCH 4, 2025, IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,575,054.60 

2. CLARITY HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH FOR FEBRUARY 2025, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $66,434.04 

3. CLARITY HEALTHCARE ADMIN FEE FOR FEBRUARY 2025, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $1,673.25 

 
C. TREASURER’S REPORT 

 
 

5. ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
 
 
  NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

1. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-03, DAWN FARM 16TH ANNUAL RIDE FOR RECOVERY 
ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST 

 
 
 

2. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-04, TO AUTHORIZE THE SALE OF 724 S FORD BLVD 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda  Page 2 March 18, 2025 

3. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-05, FOR A PARTIAL TERMINATION OF A FARMLAND 
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS AGREEMENT FOR THE PUBLIC INTEREST  
 
 
 

4. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025-06, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS APPOINTMENTS 
 
 
 

5. AUTHORIZE WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION (WCRC) 2025 SECOND 
AGREEMENT FOR LOCAL ROAD IMPROVEMENTS IN THE GREEN FARMS SUBDIVISION 
IN THE ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $1,203,330.04, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #213-446-
982.000 AND #101-902-981.130 
 
 

 
6. APPROVE LITIGATION TO ABATE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AT A PROPERTY IDENTIFIED 

AS 5593 JUSTIN CT, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-729-801.023 
 
 
 

7. APPROVE LITIGATION TO ABATE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AT A PROPERTY IDENTIFIED 
AS 1425 S HARRIS RD, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-729-801.023 

 
 

8. BUDGET AMENDMENT #4 
 
 
 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 

 
1. SEEK BID PROPOSALS FOR VEGETATION AND BLIGHT REMOVAL 

 
 

2. SEEK BID PROPOSALS FOR YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP PLAYGROUND MULCH 
INSTALLATION 

 
 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 

• THREE MINUTES PER PERSON 
• ALL COMMENTS MUST BE ADDRESSED TO THE CHAIR 
• PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE ALSO WELCOMED AS THE BOARD ADDRESSES 

EACH AGENDA ITEM 
 
 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  

 
 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 4, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
Board Meetings are audio recorded and posted on the website 

DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 
Supervisor Stumbo determined a quorum was present. 
 
Township Supervisor Brenda Stumbo called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. 
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Debbie Swanson, and 

Treasurer Stan Eldridge 
Trustees: Karen Lovejoy Roe, John Newman III, Gloria Peterson 
and LaResha Thornton 

                 
Legal Counsel: Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of silent prayer. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee 
Peterson to approve the agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 18, 2025 REGULAR MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR FEBRUARY 18, 2025 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $1,304,355.39 
 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 4, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 2 
 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Trustee 
Thornton to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
     
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

Legal update was provided by Attorney Winters. (refer to audio) 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. APPROVE THE MICHIGAN INDIGENT DEFENSE COUNSEL CONTRACT WITH 
THE WASHTENAW COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER’S OFFICE FOR THE 2024-2025 
FISCAL YEAR IN THE AMOUNT OF $42,677.90, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM # 101-
287-801.007 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Thornton to 
approve the Michigan Indigent Defense Counsel Contract with the Washtenaw 
County Public Defender’s Office for the 2024-2025 Fiscal year in the amount of 
$42,677.90, budgeted in line item #101-287-801.007. (see attached) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

2. AUTHORIZE WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION (WCRC) 2025 
AGREEMENT FOR ADDITIONAL TOWNSHIP-WIDE STREET SWEEPING AND 
CRACK SEALING IN THE ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $32,771.04, BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #213-446-982.006 

A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Clerk Swanson to authorize 
Washtenaw County Road Commission (WCRC) 2025 agreement for additional 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 4, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 3 
 

 
township-wide street sweeping and crack sealing in the estimated amount of 
$32,771.04, budgeted in line item #213-446-982.006. (see attached) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

3. APPOINT GEORGIA VALENTINE TO THE ANN ARBOR AREA 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (AAATA) BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITH A 
TERM ENDING 4/30/2029 

A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Trustee Lovejoy Roe to 
appoint Georgia Valentine to the Ann Arbor Area Transportation Authority (AAATA) 
Board of Directors with a term ending 4/30/2029. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

4. APPROVE FIVE-YEAR EXTENSION AGREEMENT WITH W. J. O’NEIL 
COMPANY FOR HVAC CONTROL SERVICES IN THE AMOUNT OF $74,760.00, 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-228-934.000, PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE 
FOR TOWNSHIP LAW ENFORCEMENT CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$27,516.00, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #266-301-931.015, CIVIC CENTER IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $55,260.00, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-265-818.001, 
COMMUNITY CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF $73,800.00, BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #230-754-818.002 AND 14B COURT IN THE AMOUNT OF $25,968.00, 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #236-286-933.001 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Peterson to 
approve five-year extension agreement with W. J. O’Neil Company for HVAC 
control services in the amount of $74,760.00, budgeted in line item #101-228-
934.000, preventative maintenance for Township Law Enforcement Center in the 
amount of $27,516.00, budgeted in line item #266-301-931.015, Civic Center in the 
amount of $55,260.00, budgeted in line item #101-265-818.001, Community 
Center in the amount of $73,800.00, budgeted in line item #230-754-818.002 and 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 4, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 4 
 

 
14B Court in the amount of $25,968.000, budgeted in line item #236-286-933.001. 
(see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

5. APPROVE CHANGE ORDER #2 WITH KAB ENTERPRISES FOR $7,464.00 FOR 
WEST WILLOW PARK ARPA PROJECT, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-902-
981.150 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Lovejoy Roe to 
approve Change Order #2 with KAB Enterprises for $7,464.00 for West Willow Park 
ARPA Project, budgeted in line item # 101-902-981.150. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

6. APPROVE UPGRADES TO THE POLICE CAMERA SYSTEM WITH A NOT TO 
EXCEED PROJECT VALUE OF $188,125.00, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #266-301-
977.000 

A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee Peterson to 
approve upgrades to the Police Camera System with a not to exceed project value 
of $188,125.00, budgeted in line item #266-301-977.000. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

 7. BUDGET AMENDMENT #3 

Clerk Swanson read the budget amendment into the record. 

A motion was made by Clerk Swanson and supported by Trustee Lovejoy Roe to 
approve budget amendment #3. (see attached) 

The motion carried unanimously. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 4, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING PAGE 5 

AUTHORIZATION AND BIDS 

1. ACCEPT THE LOW BID FROM GENE BUTMAN FORD FOR THE PURCHASE OF ONE
FORD F-150 4X4 SUPER CREW XLT IN THE AMOUNT OF $52,346.25, BUDGETED
IN LINE ITEM #206-901-979.000

A motion was made by Trustee Lovejoy Roe and supported by Trustee Thornton to 
accept the low bid from Gene Butman Ford for purchase of one Ford F-150 4x4 
Super Crew XLT in the amount of $52,346.25, budgeted in line item #206-901-
979.000. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were 2 public comments. (refer to audio) 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

There were 2 board member comments. (refer to audio) 

ADJOURNMENT 

A motion to adjourn was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Trustee 
Lovejoy Roe. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 4, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING   PAGE 6 
 

 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 6:27PM 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Debra A. Swanson, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 





















 

TREASURER’S REPORT 

 
The Treasurer’s Report will be distributed at the meeting 



Account Name Beginning Balance Cash Receipts Cash Disbursements Ending Balance
101 - General Fund 9,556,228.96 3,385,899.02 3,735,618.40 9,206,509.58
101 - Payroll 232,847.27 782,577.41 806,198.18 209,226.50
101 - Willow Run Escrow 146,884.18 45.07 0.00 146,929.25
206 - Fire Department 2,453,228.49 14,747.73 488,779.20 1,979,197.02
208 - Parks Fund 15,017.05 47.16 888.10 14,176.11
213 - Roads/Bike Path/Rec/General Fund 1,136,733.94 168,046.59 244,839.22 1,059,941.31
216 - Fire Pension & OPEB  Millage Fund 37,749.98 2,248.20 0.00 39,998.18
217 - Fire Special Millage Capital Fund 209,274.26 552.30 47,092.28 162,734.28
226 - Environmental Services 1,680,973.54 76,675.62 279,799.21 1,477,849.95
230 - Recreation 83,712.43 47,182.49 90,707.02 40,187.90
236 - 14-B District Court 154,150.81 425,471.97 489,545.09 90,077.69
244 - Economic Development 79,106.06 255.07 0.00 79,361.13
249 - Building Department Fund 1,490,788.79 44,738.05 80,572.25 1,454,954.59
250 - LDFA Tax 23,282.58 75.08 0.00 23,357.66
252 - Hydro Station Fund 1,260,819.74 47,336.95 39,538.03 1,268,618.66
266 - Law Enforcement Fund 12,410,491.42 112,699.50 769,368.30 11,753,822.62
284 - Opioid Settlement Fund 62,046.17 192.51 6,000.00 56,238.68
287 - Nuisance Abatement Fund 38,730.76 528.13 0.00 39,258.89
398 - LDFA 2006 Bonds 3,008.78 9.63 0.00 3,018.41
584 - Green Oaks Golf Course 342,056.16 14,403.72 76,996.09 279,463.79
597 - Compost Site 847,733.56 71,312.73 125,797.67 793,248.62
661 - Motor Pool 361,590.71 64,820.16 10,786.14 415,624.73
702 - General Tax Collection 7,308.96 83,044.58 0.00 90,353.54
703 - Current Tax Collections 22,547,667.33 9,108,565.30 4,841,097.99 26,815,134.64
707 - Bonds & Escrow/GreenTop 1,420,479.23 12,694.74 31,704.05 1,401,469.92
708 - Fire Withholding Bonds 88,354.87 27.12 0.00 88,381.99
GRAND  TOTAL 56,690,266.03 14,464,196.83 12,165,327.22 58,989,135.64

MONTHLY TREASURER'S REPORT
STAN ELDRIDGE

FEBRUARY 1, 2025 - FEBRUARY 28, 2025



 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
OF YPSILANTI 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-03 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Stony Creek Rd., to 
Textile Rd., to Hitchingham Rd., to Merritt Rd. (back to Stony Creek) on 
Sunday, April 27th from 10:00 am to 1:30 pm for the Ride for Recove ry  
5K /10K  Run /Wa lk  to benefit Dawn Farm Ride for Recovery. 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees  
approves the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as 
indicated above; and 

WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Washtenaw County Road Commission. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Tracy Puvalowski, 
Development Director of Dawn Farm be the authorized official designee in 
this instance, when application is made to the Washtenaw County Road 
Commission for this temporary road closure. 





Distance

Dawn Farm Ride for Recovery 5K
Run/Walk
https://www.strava.corrl h ouies /321939973L8 4 69 0 499 1

3.0 mi 47 ft 12:2L

Proceed onto Stony Creek Road

Proceed onto Stony Creek Road

Proceed onto off-road waypoint. No
data available

Continue on Textile Road

Proceed onto off-road waypoint. No
data available

Continue on Hitchingham Road

Proceed onto Hitchingham Road

Proceed onto Merritt Road

Proceed onto Merritt Road

Left onto Stony Creek Road

Arrive at Finish

Elevation Gain Est. Moving Time

ntSTs.N*e

O.0 mi

0.8 mi

O.8 mi

0.8 mi

0.9 mi

0.9 mi

1.0 mi

1.9 mi

2.7 mi

2.7 mi

3.O mi

770 fi

164 fr

75C fl
7.10 Jt

730 tl

i0rni 1.0 $l ?ln'i 3.0 mr

Route recoftrrnendations may be incomplete andlor inaec! rate and maycontain

sections of private land and/or sections ofterrain that cou d be challenging or

hazardous. Always use your bestlLrdgemenl about the safety of road and trai

conditlons and follow traffic and property aws,

ffextile Rd Texl

I
r3

rh.
\

..,..)



D stance

Dawn Farm Ride for Recovery 10K
Ride/Run/Walk
https://www. strav a.com /routes /3219 40 Oi 6 1 6 139 82198

6.1 mi 94ft 24:43

BIRECTION

Proceed onto off-road waypoint. No
data available

Continue on Textile Road

Proceed onto off-road waypoint. No
data available

Continue on Hitchingham Road

i.:ir 
Proceed onto Hitchingham Road

Proceed onto Merritt Road

Proceed onto 14erritt Road

Left onto Stony Creek Road

Proceed onto Stony Creek Road

Proceed onto off{oad waypoint. No
data available

Continue on Textile Road

Proceed onto Textile Road

Proceed onto off-road waypoint. No
data available

Continue on Hitchingham Road

Elevatiof Gain Est. [,]oving T me

$ist?Ne*

0.8 mi

0.8 mi

0.9 mi

0.9 mi

1.0 mi

1.9 mi

2.7 mi

2.7 mi

3.0 mi

3.9 mi

3.9 mi

4.0 mi

4.0 mi

4.0 mi

4.3 mi

5.0 mi

5.8 mi

5.8 mi

5.1 mi

770 ft

76i) fl
750 fi

740 ft

730 ti

t0m 2almi 4.i) rl 6.1nrl

Route recommendations n-ray be incompleie and/or inaccurate and may contain

sections of p.ivate land and/or seclions ofteffain that could be challenging or

hazardous. Always use your bestjudgernent about the safety of road and trail

conditions and follow traff ic and propefi y laws.

Proceed onto Hitchingham Road

Proceed onto Merritt Road

Proceed onto N4erritt Road

Left onto Stony Creek Road

Arrive at Finish

DIRTCTION

Proceed onto Stony Creek Road

Proceed onto Stony Creek Road

i){$TAt".!flil

0.0 mi

0.8 mi

extile Rd -r.lJ

T

&*$i

:

tt
_:_.-:._''l

il







1 

RESOLUTION 2025-04   

Authorizing the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
to Sell to Purchaser Eliza Skelcey One Vacant Parcel 

Located at 724 N. Ford Blvd. 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti holds title to a vacant 

parcel located at 724 N. Ford Blvd., title of which includes the legal 

description of the vacant parcel as follows: 

K-11-02-328-007, 724 N. Ford Blvd., Ypsilanti, MI 48198 with a

legal description of YP#58-265 Lot 265, excluding S 3 ft thereof East 

Park Subdivision, 0.16 total acres.; and 

WHEREAS, on January 20, 2025 Eliza Skelcey requested of the 

Ypsilanti Township Assessing Department to purchase the vacant lot as 

described above which she intends to utilize as a “garden lot,” and; 

WHEREAS, at a regular Board meeting held on August 20, 2024 

the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees authorized the sale of the vacant 

lot which according to the “Market Valuation Report” prepared by Deputy 

Assessor Brian McCleery dated August 6, 2024 was valued at $7,000, 

and; 

WHEREAS, on the 27th day of February, 2025 Purchaser Eliza 

Skelcey signed the proposed “Purchase Agreement” (a copy of which is 

attached hereto and incorporated by reference) in which the Purchaser  



2 

will remit to the Township the sum of $7,000 in accordance with the Market 

Valuation Report dated August 6, 2024.  

NOW, THEREFORE THE YPSILANTI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  

1. That the Township Board accepts the Purchase Offer 

submitted hereto and authorizes the execution of the “Purchase 

Agreement” by Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo and Clerk Debra A. 

Swanson. 

2. That the Township authorizes Supervisor Stumbo and Clerk 

Swanson to execute all documents required by Cislo Title to effectuate the 

transfer of the vacant parcel to Purchaser Eliza Skelcey once a closing 

date has been scheduled. 

3. That a certified copy of this Resolution be forwarded to Cislo 

Title as set forth in Paragraph 23 of the Purchase Agreement. 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

 
 
 
Date:  March 3, 2025 
 
 
To:      Ypsilanti Township Board  
   
 
 
From: Brian McCleery,  
  Deputy Assessor 
 
 
Re:  Agenda Item to Authorize Property Sale to Eliza Skelcey 
  
  K-11-02-328-007 724 N Ford Blvd 
 
   
 
The Assessor’s Office is requesting approval of Resolution 2025-04 to 
authorization the sale of the above property to Eliza Skelcey for $7,000 plus 
all closing costs.      
 
The purchase agreement stipulates that the property cannot be utilized for the 
construction of any building including but not limited to a single-family 
residential structure and/ or accessory buildings without the consent of the 
Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees. Further if a single-family home is built 
on the property, it will not become a rental property.  
 
Attached you will find the Resolution 2025-04, the purchase agreement, and 
aerial photographs of the property.  If you have any questions or need more 
information, please don’t hesitate to contact me. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To: Linda Gosselin, Assessor 
 Brian McCleery, Deputy Assessor 
 
From: Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
 
Date: August 21, 2024 
 
Subject: Request authorization for the negotiation of sale of Township property 

at 724 N. Ford Blvd 
 
At the regular meeting held on August 20th, 2024, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees authorized the negotiation of sale of Township property at 724 N. 
Ford Blvd 
 
Should you have any questions, please contact my office. 
 
ajr 
 
cc: Files 
 
 
 





CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

RESOLUTION 2025-05 

PARTIAL TERMINATION OF A FARMLAND 
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS AGREEMENT 

-PUBLIC INTEREST- 
 

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2025 the township board 

received a request from Washtenaw County Road Commission for 

approval to have a certain parcel released from agreement 

number 81-66585-123132 which was executed in accordance with 

the provisions of PA 116 of 1974, commonly known as the 

Farmland and Open Space Preservation Act (“The Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the township board has reviewed this request 

and DETERMINED that THE RELEASE IS IN THE PUBLIC 

INTEREST and meets one or more conditions of 36111a. (1) (b) 

of Part 361 of the Natural Resources and Environmental 

Protection Act; and 

WHEREAS, the parcel proposed for release from the 

agreement is .114 acres in size; and 

WHEREAS, the township board finds that the request for 

release of the particular parcel is acceptable. 

















LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PARCEL TO BE REMOVED (Attach sheet if necessary): 

*A survey is required for justification if more than 2 acres is needed to encompass the buildings. 

Signature: _________________________________   Date: ______________________________ 
Landowner/Representative 

If this is signed by a Representative, please attach legal document granting authority. 

Return completed request to the Farmland Preservation Office: 

EMAIL:  MDARD-PA116@Michigan.gov 

Fax: 517-335-3131 

MAIL: MDARD – Farmland, PO Box 30449, Lansing MI  48909 

06.24.2021 

mailto:MDARD-PA116@Michigan.gov




www.michigan.gov/farmland

Farmland Agreements
Transferring, Splitting

& Releasing

Required Repayments
If the parcel is approved for release, the landowner 
is required to repay the tax credits taken during the 
last seven years under the agreement, plus 6% simple 
interest. When the Farmland Preservation Office receives 
the repayment amount from the Michigan Department 
of Treasury, notification will be sent to the owner and 
the parcel will be released once the amount is paid. 

Entire farmland agreements may be released prior to 
the expiration date of the agreement, if approved by 
the local unit of government and the state, and when 
one of the following criteria are met:
•	 The farmland is economically inviable
•	 Surrounding land usage restricts farming
•	 Natural irreversible change occurs to the land,     

which restricts farming
•	 A court order restricts farming
•	 Public interest is served by the release

(Note: Portions of agreements may be released due 
to public interest.) 

Request an application from the MDARD Farmland 
Preservation Office. Submit the form to the local 
unit of government for action. If the application is 
approved by the local government, it is forwarded 
to MDARD for review and action. If the application is 
denied by the local government, that decision may be 
appealed to MDARD. The local government may also 
waive its right to review the application and forward it 
directly to MDARD for action.

What are other options for releasing 
land from a farmland agreement?

How to make your request

A farmland agreement may be split into smaller 
agreements as long as the request is consistent with 
the intent of the act.

Minimum Requirements
To split an agreement, each of the resulting parcels 
must meet one of these criteria:
•	 At least 40 acres in size
•	 At least five acres, but less than 40 acres, and a 

minimum of 51% devoted to agricultural use, and 
producing a gross annual income of $200 or more 
per tillable acre

How to Make Your Request
To request a split of an agreement, you must submit 
the following to MDARD:
•	 Farmland agreement number of the parcel to be split
•	 Legal descriptions for each parcel that will be 

placed in a separate agreement
•	 Number of acres in each parcel
•	 For parcels at least five acres, but fewer than 40 acres, 

the number of tillable acres in each parcel, and 
the gross annual income per tillable acre (parcels 
in CRP are considered  to meet the gross income 
requirement)

Approval
If the parcels meet these requirements, new 
agreements will be sent for signing and recording.

May I split my farmland agreement?

Michigan Department of 
Agriculture & Rural Development
Environmental Stewardship Division
P.O. Box 30449, Lansing, MI 48909
Phone: 517-284-5663
MDARD-PA116@michigan.gov
www.michigan.gov/farmland

www.maeap.org
www.michigan.gov/farmland

Farmland Agreements
Transferring, Splitting

& Releasing

The Farmland 
& Open Space 
Preservation Program

Program forms are available at 
www.michigan.gov/farmland 



Can a lot be released to allow a farm 
employee to build?
Up to two acres may be released to allow for the 
construction of a house for a person essential to the farm.

Definition of Essential to the Farm
A person essential to the farm is a co-owner, partner, 
shareholder, farm manager or family member who cultivates, 
operates or manages the farm under an agreement; has a 
financial interest equal to or greater than one-half the cost of 
producing crops, livestock or products; and inspects, advises 
and consults with the owner on production activities; 
OR works 1,040 hours or more annually in activities 
connected with the production of the farm operation.

How to Make Your Request
To request the release of up to two acres, the 
following items must be submitted to MDARD:
•	 Farmland agreement number
•	 A resolution of approval from the local unit of government
•	 Legal description of the parcel
•	 Listing, on letterhead from the local assessor, the taxable 

value for the past seven years for the lot to be released
•	 Documents (W-2, Schedule F, or payroll records) 

thatshow that the person to whom the lot is being 
released meets the requirements for being essential to 
the farm.

Required Repayment
To complete the release of the parcel and building(s), 
repayment is required for the tax credits taken during 
the last seven years, plus 6% simple interest on the parcel 
being removed. When MDARD receives the repayment 
amount from the Michigan Department of Treasury, the 
owner is notified and the parcel is released upon payment.

Up to two acres may be released from a Farmland 
Agreement when there are buildings in existence that 
were present prior to the start of the original agreement.

How to Make Your Request
To request such a release submit the following:
•	 Farmland agreement number
•	 Resolution of approval from the local government
•	 Legal description of the parcel to be released
•	 Listing of the taxable value of the parcel for the past 

seven years on letterhead from the local assessor

Can land be released from the program       
due to death or disability? 

It’s possible to release property from the program 
when the landowner dies or becomes disabled. A 
request to release property must be made within three 
years of the date of death or disability.

Release Due to Death 
Termination due to death may be requested for a 
single agreement or multiple agreements or for a 
parcel up to two acres with a pre-existing building.   
The person who becomes owner through survivorship 
or inheritance must submit a copy of the death 
certificate with the request.

Release Due to Disability
An owner requesting a disability termination must submit 
a signed statement from a physician indicating the type 
and severity of the disability, and whether the condition 
represents total and permanent disability, as defined in 
the program’s administrative rules. A request for disability 
termination must be for all of the land enrolled in the 
program in the disabled person’s name, OR just for a 
parcel up to two acres with a pre-existing building.

Partial Release Due to Death/Disability
To request a partial release of agreement, you must 
submit the following documents:
•	 Farmland agreement number
•	 Legal description of the parcel to be released
•	 Listing, on letterhead from the local assessor, the taxable 

value for the past seven years for the lot to be released and
•	 Letter from the assessor indicating at least one structure 

was present prior to the beginning of the agreement.

Required Repayment
To complete the release of the parcel, the requester 
must repay a prorated share of the tax credits taken 
during the last seven years, attributable to the parcel 
being released. When MDARD receives the repayment 
amount from the Michigan Department of Treasury, 
the owner will be notified and the relinquishment 
document will be mailed to the owner for recording.

Can a lot with pre-existing buildings be 
released from an agreement?

What is the Farmland and Open Space 
Preservation Program?

The Farmland and Open Space Preservation 
Program is designed to preserve farmland and 
open space through agreements that restrict 
development, and provide tax incentives for 
program participation. 

A landowner is free to sell his/her land. However, 
the agreement remains with the land. It may be 
transferred, as long as the new owner agrees to 
comply with the provisions of the agreement, and 
all land described in the agreement is conveyed to the 
new owner.

Transferring Your Agreement
When enrolled land is conveyed to another party, 
you must submit the following to the MDARD 
Farmland Preservation Office:
•	 Farmland agreement number
•	 Copy of the deed, land contract and/or death 

certificate used to convey the land to the new owner
•	 New owner’s address (if different from the deed)

When this information is received, a new agreement 
is sent to the new owner for signing and recording.

May I sell my land if it is enrolled in a 
farmland agreement?

(See brochure #1 Farmland Agreements--Enrollment, 
Eligibility & Benefits for more information.)



Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

MEMORANDUM 

To:      Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 

Date:   March 11, 2025 

RE:     Resolution 2025-06: Boards and Commissions Appointments 

Please find attached a Resolution making appointments to both SEMCOG and WATS. 

At the 12/3/24 Board of Trustees meeting, John Hines was appointed to SEMCOG with Brenda 
Stumbo as alternate. We recently learned that an elected official must be the principal member, 
so John Hines will be moved to the alternate, and LaResha Thornton will be the principal 
member. 

Secondly, the Supervisor’s Office is recommending Paul Ajegba, Senior Vice President at 
Infrastructure Engineering of Michigan to fill the vacancy left on the WATS Technical 
Committee by the resignation of Planning and Development Coordinator Fletcher Reyher. Paul 
is our Traffic Engineer and former MDOT Director who has agreed to represent us on the 
Technical Committee for WATS. The committee annually establishes project priorities for 
consideration to MDOT, so his experience will help with that process greatly. 

SEMCOG and WATS partner together for projects, and we hope this appointments will bring 
more road funding to our Township.  

Thank you for your consideration. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Boards and Commissions Appointments 

Resolution No. 2025-06 

APPOINTMENTS 

Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) Exp. Date 
Thornton, LaResha  11/20/2028 
Hines, John (Alternate) 12/31/2028 

Washtenaw Area Transportation Study (WATS) Exp. Date 
Ajegba, Paul  Pleasure of the Board 



Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

MEMORANDUM 

To:      Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 

Date:   March 11, 2025 

RE:     Request to authorize Washtenaw County Road Commission (WCRC) 2025 Second 
Agreement for local road improvements in the Greene Farms subdivision in the 
estimated amount of $1,203,330.04, budgeted in line items #213-446-982.000 and 
#101-902-981.130 

Attached for the Board’s consideration is the 2025 Second Road Agreement with the Washtenaw 
County Road Commission for forestry, cold milling the existing pavement surface, replacement 
of deteriorated concrete curb and gutter, ADA sidewalk ramp upgrades, construction of a 2’ hot 
mix asphalt wearing surface, and associated project restoration.  

The three full-time officials met with the road commission and they recommended completing 
the Greene Farms subdivision. We will also be looking at bonding for local roads and 
coordinating them with YCUA improvements. The matching funds from the County Road 
Commission for this project are $339,669.96. The road commission is responsible for primary 
roads and the County wide tax of 0.5 mills is estimated to provide $10.99 million per year for 
improvements.   

The Supervisor’s office is requesting authorization for the Supervisor and Clerk to sign this 
agreement. The Township’s contribution to this project would be $1,203,330.04, which would be 
split between two line items: 

$645,000 - 213-446-982.000 
$558,330.04 - 101-902-981.130 

Thank you for your consideration. 



2025 YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP SECOND AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _____ day of _______, 2025, by and between the 
Township Board of Ypsilanti Township (“Ypsilanti Township”), Washtenaw County, and the Washtenaw 
County Board of County Road Commissioners (“WCRC”). 
 
WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township desires that certain improvements be made upon the local roads in the 
Township of Ypsilanti, and   
 
WHEREAS, proper authority is provided to the parties of the agreement under the provisions in Act 51 
of Public Acts of 1951 as amended, 
 
IT IS NOW THEREFORE AGREED, the WCRC will accomplish the improvements as specified herein, 
all in accordance with the standards of the WCRC, 
 
IT IS FURTHER AGREED, Ypsilanti Township shall pay WCRC for the actual project costs incurred for 
the project; and  
 
IT IS FURTHER AGREED, the WCRC will submit monthly invoices to the Township during the progress 
of the construction. Following project completion and final accounting of the project costs, WCRC will 
submit the final invoice for the actual remaining unpaid costs. The final invoice shall provide supporting 
detail and information, which reasonably identifies the actual project costs incurred by WCRC. The 
Township described herein agrees to remit payment within 30 days from receipt of WCRC invoices. 
 
Greene Farms Subdivision 2025: 
Work to include forestry, cold milling the existing pavement surface, replacement of deteriorated 
concrete curb and gutter, ADA sidewalk ramp upgrades, construction of a 2” hot mix asphalt 
wearing surface, and associated project restoration. 
 
Roads to include: 
 
(Phase 1) 
Greene Farm Drive, 515 feet west of Pioneer Dr to Whittaker Rd 
Pioneer Drive, Greene Farm Dr to Dover Dr 
Dover Drive, Oyster Bay Dr to end of road 
Oyster Bay Drive, Dover Dr to Bay Tree Dr 
 
(Phase 2) 
Greene Farm Drive, Dover Dr to 515 feet west of Pioneer Dr 
Dover Drive, Greene Farm Dr to Oyster Bay Dr 
 
(Phase 3) 
Dover Drive, Roxbury Dr to Greene Farm Dr 
Roxbury Drive, Berwick Dr to Dover Dr 
Richmond Drive, Berwick Dr to Dover Dr 
Rachel Drive, Hitchingham Rd to Dover Dr 
Berwick Drive, Roxbury Dr to Glacier Pointe Dr 
Glen Oaks Drive, Rachel Dr to Glacier Pointe Dr  

 
 
 

 
 
Estimated project cost for Greene Farms Subdivision 2025:      

  
$ 1,543,000.00  

 

       

    

         



2025 Ypsilanti Township Second Agreement 

AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

2024 LOCAL ROAD PROGRAM 
Greene Farms Subdivision 2024 (Phases 1, 2, 3) $ 1,543,000.00 
Less WCRC 2024 Local Matching Funds    $    339,669.96 
Subtotal  $ 1,327,330.04    

ESTIMATED AMOUNT TO BE PAID BY YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP UNDER 
THIS AGREEMENT DURING 2025:  $ 1,203,330.04 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI: 

Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor Debra A. Swanson, Clerk 

WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION: 

Barbara Ryan Fuller, Chair Matthew MacDonell, Managing Director 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Belinda Kingsley, Community Compliance Director 
 
Re: Request authorization to initiate Circuit Court litigation to abate a public 

nuisance at a property identified as 5593 Justin Ct; funded in account 101-729-
801.023. 

 
Date:  March 11, 2025 
 

 

The Ypsilanti Township Ordinance Department has investigated a public nuisance violation 
resulting from a fire at 5593 Justin Ct.  Authorization is requested to abate said public nuisance 
by initiating Circuit Court litigation. 
 
5593 Justin Ct. 
 

 
 
The property identified as 5593 Justin Court is located south of South Huron River Dr. and west 
of Tuttle Hill, in the Ford Lake Village subdivision, in an R-4 One Family Residential zone.  It is 
owned by Sonya Wilson.  Ms. Wilson purchased the property in 2006 for $205,000.  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 
On December 27, 2022, a portion of the house was damaged by fire.  Ms. Wilson hired a 
contractor to perform the rehabilitation work.  Her insurance company settled the claim, and 
payment was made to perform the repairs.  Permits were issued by the Township for an 
estimated $137,500 in repairs, and the work was started but has not been completed.  The 
Building Permit expired in April 2024 and there has not been any work performed since that 
time. 
 
With the exception of a boarded-up window over the garage, the condition of the interior of 
the house is unknown.  Although we have not documented this, based on a conversation with 
the contractor, the fire damaged materials were removed but repairs were not started.  The 
house has remained unoccupied, and we have been unable to contact Ms. Wilson.  
 
The property owner has been afforded ample time to restore the house to habitable conditions 
but has not proceeded in good faith.  We are requesting approval to file litigation in the 
Washtenaw County Circuit Court, to obtain an Order requiring compliance with the Township 
Code of Ordinances. 
 
Thank you for your consideration and your continued support for our public nuisance 
abatement efforts. 
 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Belinda Kingsley, Community Compliance Director 
 
Re: Request authorization to initiate Circuit Court litigation to abate a public 

nuisance at a property identified as 1425 S Harris Rd; funded in account 101-
729-801.023. 

 
Date:  March 12, 2025 
 
 
The Ypsilanti Township Ordinance Department has investigated a rental property zoning 
violation at 1425 S Harris.  Authorization is requested to abate said violation by initiating Circuit 
Court litigation. 
 
1425 S Harris Rd 
 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 
The property identified as 1425 S Harris Rd. is located north of Wingate Blvd and south of Foley 
Ave, in an RM-LD Multiple Family (Low Density) zone.  It is owned by Sandy McFiddish LLC, with 
Ian Greenlee listed as the Resident Agent.  Mr. Greenlee purchased the property in 2015 and 
continued the existing rental use.  
 
The property consists of a large house with an additional dwelling unit added on and a garage.  
The Township has certified the property as a duplex (2 units) since 2014, which is a permitted 
use in the RM-LD zone.  At the time of the initial rental inspection in November 2024, it was 
determined that the house is being used for the unpermitted use of a “rooming house.”  The 
large house has been divided into eight (8) individual rooms occupied by tenants who share 
common bathrooms, kitchen and living room.  The rooms are numbered for individual tenants, 
and in violation of the Building and Fire Codes, each door has a lock requiring a key to gain 
access. Photos are attached below of several doors.  Mr. Greenlee acknowledges that the 
tenants are on individual leases.   
 
The Township Code of Ordinances permits “dwelling units” to be either a single-family, duplex 
or multi-family.  The common factor in all dwelling unit definitions is that each unit has 
separate housekeeping, cooking and bathroom facilities. This house has been inappropriately 
divided into a rooming house and needs to be restored to a duplex to be in compliance with 
the Township ordinances, Fire Code and Building Code.     
 
The Township has engaged in meetings, conversations and inspections with Mr. Greenlee, and 
he has been afforded ample time to resolve the violation but fails to understand the need to do 
so.  At this time, we are requesting approval to file litigation in the Washtenaw County Circuit 
Court, to obtain an Order requiring compliance with the Township ordinances by returning the 
property to a duplex use. 
 
Thank you for your consideration and your continued support for our public nuisance 
abatement efforts. 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 
 

 
Keyed Lock - Numbered Door 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

 
Keyed Lock - Numbered Door 

 

Deadbolt on Interior Door 



Motion to Amend the 2025 Budget (#4)  

 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $84,314 to $21,146,802 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Fire Fund budget by $19,058 to $5,595,948 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Law Enforcement Fund budget by $139,663 to $10,381,490 and 

approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2025 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 4

MARCH 18, 2025

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $84,314.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $1,854.00

Net Revenues $1,854.00

Expenditures: Salary PTO Payout 101-191-708.004 $1,722.00

FICA 101-191-715.000 $132.00

Net Expenditures $1,854.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $78,560.00

Net Revenues $78,560.00

Expenditures: Furniture and Fixtures 101-901-975.135 $78,560.00

Net Expenditures $78,560.00

Revenues: Designated Loss Revenue ARPA 101-000-686.000 $3,900.00

Net Revenues $3,900.00

Expenditures: Lakeside Shelter Park 101-902-981.120 $3,900.00

Net Expenditures $3,900.00

206 - FIRE FUND Total Increase $19,058.00

Revenues: Insurance Reimbursement 206-000-676.012 $19,058.00

Net Revenues $19,058.00

Expenditures: Communications 206-336-857.000 $19,058.00

Net Expenditures $19,058.00

Request to carryforward the approved funding for Engineering provided by Spicer Group at Lakeside Park. This 

was approved at the July 16, 2024 Board meeting.  This will be funded by appropriation of ARPA funds.

Request to carryforward the approved funding for new signs and installation provided by Bill Carr Signs, Inc. 

This was approved at the December 3, 2024 Board meeting.  This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year 

fund balance.

Request to increase the budget for PTO payout at 75%.  This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund 

balance. 

Request to increase the budget for replacement of lost radios. This will be funded by an insurance 

reimbursement. 

1 of 2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2025 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 4

MARCH 18, 2025

266 - LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND Total Increase $139,663.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 266-000-699.999 $139,663.00

Net Revenues $139,663.00

Expenditures: Sheriff - CSO 266-301-831.015 $139,663.00

Net Expenditures $139,663.00

Request to add a new line and budget for a Community Service Officer (CSO). This is a contractual position 

provided by the Washtenaw County Sheriff's Department. The CSO position was approved at the March 19, 2024 

Board meeting. The CSO will provide support related to neighborhood watch and be the liaison between the 

Township and Sheriff's Office.  The position was filled by the Sheriff's Office in February 2025. This will be 

funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance.

2 of 2



 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 

 

 



1 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Karen Lovejoy Roe 
LaResha Thornton 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

From: Belinda Kingsley, Community Compliance Director 

Date: March 11, 2025 

Subject:  Request Authorization to Seek Bid Proposals for Vegetation and Blight Removal 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

The Office of Community Standards is requesting authorization to seek bid proposals for 
Vegetation and Blight Removal on properties in violation of the Ordinance. 

Ypsilanti Township has been contracting with Looking Good Lawns to perform vegetation and 
blight abatement services.  The contract expired at the end of 2024. This RFP will be open for 14 
days to any and all bidders that wish to submit proposals for these services. 

We are requesting bids from contractors that will perform vegetation and blight abatement 
services as needed on a year-round schedule.  This requires flexibility to be available when 
contacted by the Ordinance Department, and to respond promptly.  

Belinda Kingsley 
Community Compliance Director 
bkingsley@ypsitownship.org 
734-544-3651

mailto:bkingsley@ypsitownship.org


Page 1 of 7 

INVITATION TO PROVIDE WRITTEN BID PROPOSALS 

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti is accepting written bid proposals for the following: 

Ordinance Violation – Vegetation and Blight Removal 

Sealed bids will be accepted until Thursday, April 3, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. at which time all bids will 

be opened and read aloud. Bid proposals may be submitted by USPS mail or hand delivered. 

Bids submitted by facsimile or email will not be accepted. Please provide two (2) sealed copies of 

the bid proposal to: 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, Ml 48197 

Sealed bids must be plainly marked "Bid: Vegetation and Blight Removal ". 

Bid specifications and the required bid form are available on BIDNET or at ypsitownship.org, at 

the Township Clerk's Office. Questions about bid specifications or format may be directed to 

Angie Rogers at the Clerks Office by calling (734) 544-4000 or by email at 

arogers@ypsitownship.org. 

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any 

irregularities in the best interest of the Township. 

mailto:arogers@ypsitownship.org.


Page 2 of 7 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

Ordinance – Vegetation and Blight Removal 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

PROPOSALS 

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti desires to receive bid pricing for Ordinance – Vegetation 
and Blight Removal. All bids must be submitted on the bid form provided and must include 
all required attachments listed below. The contract duration will be for two (2) years with 
an option for negotiated annual renewals at rates to be determined. The Township is not 
obligated to negotiate a renewal and may seek new bid pricing. 

The Township reserves the right to reject any and/or all bids and to waive any informalities and 
technicalities and to accept the bid which it deems most favorable to the interest of the Township. 

All Bids Must Include: 

• BID FORM with complete pricing for all bid categories for which the bidder wishes to
be considered (enclosed here)

• ATTACHMENT I: Company name, address, telephone number and email address;
a statement indicating the number of persons employed by the Contractor
(include copies of driver's licenses or state ID cards)

• ATTACHMENT 2: A complete list of available equipment owned by the company to
be used to fulfill this contract

• ATTACHMENT 3: History of similar work experience
• ATTACHMENT 4: References including names, address and telephone numbers

SCOPE OF WORK 

Work will be performed as needed and indicated by the Office of Community Standards 
Department. 

HOLD HARMLESS 

The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for the protection of all pavements, 
curbs, bridges, railroads, poles and any other surface structures and all water mains, 
sewers, telephones lines, gas mains and any other underground services and 
structures along and near the work which may be affected by his/her operations and 
shall indemnify, defend and save harmless the Charter Township of Ypsilanti against all 
damages or alleged damages to any structure or injury to any individuals as a result of 
their operations. No tree or shrubbery of any kind shall be removed or destroyed by 
the Contractor without the consent of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti. 



Page 3 of 7 

INSURANCE 

The Contractor shall not commence work under this contract until they have obtained all 
insurance as required by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti financial policy and provided for 
in the Contract Documents. All insurance certificates must name "The Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti and its past, present, and future elected officials" as additional named insured on 
the general lia bility policy with respect to the services provided under this contract. 

SUB-CONTRACTS 

The Contractor shall not sublet, assign or transfer this contract or any portion thereof or any 
payment due to them, without the written consent of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti. 

INTERPRETATION OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS 

The Owner will not give verbal answers to any inquiries regarding the meaning of drawings 
or specifications. All explanations by bidders must be requested of the Township in writing, 
and if an explanation is necessary, a reply will be made in the form of an addendum to each 
Bidder who has received a set of the contract documents. 

All addenda issued to bidders prior to date of receipt of bids shall become a part of the 
specifications. 

WITHDRAWING BID 

Once a bid is submitted, it may be withdrawn when a request is made in writing and prior to 
the time designated in the advertisement for the opening of bids. 

BID DEADLINE 

Bids must be submitted in a sealed envelope marked "Bid: Ordinance - Vegetation and 
Blight Removal " either by mail, hand delivered or through BIDNET and must be received at 
the Clerk's Office at 7200 S Huron River Dr, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 no later than April 3, 2025, 
by 10:00 a.m. (EST).  

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Code of Residential Services, Sec. 2-201, "Living Wage", 
may be obtained from the Clerk's Office or on-line at www.ypsitownship.org. 

(End of Instructions to Bidders) 

http://www.ypsitownship.org./


Page 4 of 7 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 Ordinance –  and Blight Removal 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

SPECIFICATIONS 

A. The intent of the Contract Documents is to include in the contract price the cost
of all labor and materials, disposal fees, water, fuel, tools, plant, equipment, light,
transportation and all other expenses as may be necessary for the proper
execution and completion of the work.

B. Under the direction of the Office of Community Standards Department, the
Ordinance – Vegetation and Blight Removal shall include:

1. Vegetation abatement of properties in violation, as determined by the
Township, including required perimeter, fence line and landscaped area
grass/weed trimming.

2. Blight clean-up of properties in violation as determined by the Township.
3. Hauling of all items removed by Contractor and vegetation to the

designated disposal site.

C. The following scope of work standards will apply for authorization of work:

1. The Office of Community Standards will submit an authorization via email to the Contractor
which shall include the address or parcel ID number of the parcel to be mowed or cleaned,
and a description of the work authorized to be performed, and a work order billing code.

2. The contractor will provide an estimate for the performance of work, if requested to do so.
3. If the Contractor is unable or unwilling to perform requested work, Township must be

notified immediately to make alternate arrangements.

Blight Disposal 
Blight removed from parcels shall be disposed of at the Ypsilanti Township Compost Site 
located at 2600 E. Clark Road. Scrap tires shall be disposed of at the Contractor’s facility. 

Timeliness and Invoices 
All work shall be completed within a timely manner.  Inclement weather, including but not 
limited to excessive heat, rain and lightning may be taken into consideration for the timely 
completion of work. The Contractor shall submit a detailed invoice to the Office of 
Community Standards Department providing a breakdown for each work order, including 
address or parcel ID number, work performed and the date that the work was performed.



Page 5 of 7 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP 
The Contractor shall furnish suitable vehicles, equipment, tools and labor to perform the 
work to be done. The Contractor shall also provide a valid electronic mail (email) address 
to the Township that can be relied upon to transmit and receive work orders. All work 
orders will be submitted to the Contractor via email; and a reply from the Contractor 
acknowledging receipt of each work order/email is required in a timely manner. 

PERMITS 
The Contractor shall, at all times, observe and comply with, and shall cause all of their 
agents and employees to observe and comply with, all existing and future laws of Ypsilanti 
Township. 

PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY 
The Contractor shall maintain adequate protection of all of their work from damage and 
shall protect all public property and private abutting property from injury or loss arising from 
its fulfillment of this contract. They shall, without delay, make good any such damages, 
injury or loss, and shall defend and save the Charter Township of Ypsilanti from all such 
damages or injuries occurring because of their work. They shall furnish and maintain any 
passageways, barricades, guard fences, lights and danger signals, watchmen and other 
facilities for protection required by the public authority or by local conditions, all at no 
additional cost to the Township. In an emergency affecting the safety of life or of the work 
or of adjoining property, the Contractor without special instruction or authorization from 
the Township, shall take such action as may be necessary to prevent such threatened 
damage, injury or loss. 

MAINTENANCE OF SERVICE 
Drainage through existing sewers and drains shall be maintained at all times and all 
nearby gutters shall be kept open for drainage. 

STORAGE OF MATERIALS 
Materials and equipment owned by the Contractor shall not be stored on Township 
property at any time. 

MINIMUM WAGE 
All employees involved with this contract must be paid in accordance with the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti Code of Residential Services Sec. 2-201, "Living Wage". A copy of this 
can be obtained through the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Clerk's Office by calling (734) 
544-4000.



Page 6 of 7 

INSURANCE 
The Contractor agrees to provide the Township with Certificates of insurance for General 
Liability, Vehicle Liability, and Statutory Workers Compensation, according to the limits 
provided in the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Financial Policy. The Certificates of insurance 
must be provided to the Township prior to the execution of the contract documents. 
Examples of said insurances should be included in your bid. 

The Contractor will maintain at its own expense during the term of the Contract, the 
following insurances: 

a. Worker's Compensation insurance with Michigan statutory limits and employers’
liability insurance of$ 1,000,000.00 minimum each accident.

b. Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability Insurance with a combined single limit of
$1,000,000.00 each occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. Policy to
include products and completed operations, independent contractors and contractual
liability coverage. Policy shall be endorsed to provide 60 days’ written notice to the Risk
Manager of any material change of coverage, cancellation or non-renewal of
coverage.

c. The Township’s protective policy shall be in the name of "Charter Township of
Ypsilanti."  Policy shall provide property damage per occurrence. "The Charter
Township of Ypsilanti and its past, present, and future elected Officials" shall be
named as "additional named insured" on the General Liability policy with respect to
the services provided under this contract.

d. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles with
personal protection insurance and property protection insurance to comply with
provisions of the Michigan No Fault Insurance Law. Including residual liability insurance
with a minimum combined single limit of$ 1,000,000.00 each accident for bodily injury
and property damage.

e. An umbrella policy may be used to meet some of the above requirements.

f. All insurance policies must be held by companies licensed to do business in Michigan
and such companies must be well rated and acceptable to the Charter Township of
Ypsilanti.

g. If the required insurance is not maintained at any time during the term of this
Contract, the Contract shall be subject to cancellation immediately or at any time
thereafter, at the sole discretion of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti. If the Township
elects to exercise its option to cancel on these grounds, the Township shall so notify
the Contractor of its election.

h. All Certificates of insurance are subject to the final approval of the Ypsilanti
Township Attorney.

(End of General Conditions) 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
VEGETATION AND BLIGHT ABATEMENT PROGRAM 

Company Name: _________________________________________ 

Improved Lots under 6,000 sf  Premium surcharge over 10” 
Improved Lots 6,000 - 12,000 sf  Premium surcharge over 10” 

Improved Lots over 12,000 sf Premium surcharge over 10” 

Unimproved Lots under 6,000 sf Premium surcharge over 10” 
Unimproved Lots 6,000 - 12,000 sf Premium surcharge over 10” 

Unimproved over 12,000 sf Premium surcharge over 10” 

Margin Area Only (right-of-way area) Premium surcharge over 10” 
Pick-up and dispose of excess trash/debris 

per 13-gallon trash bag 
Trash/Debris Clean-Up and Removal: 

Per Cubic Yard 
Hourly Rate 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Debbie Swanson 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

LaResha Thornton 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From: John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date: March 4, 2025 
 
Subject:  Request Authorization to seek bid proposals for Ypsilanti Township Playground 

Mulch installation.   
 
The Residential Services Department is requesting authorization to seek bid proposals for 
Township Playground Mulch installation for 2025-2026.   
 
Ypsilanti Township previously contracted with Superior Groundcover for 2023-2024 mulch 
installations.  This RFQ will be open to any and all bidders to submit a proposal for the 
playground mulch installation. Included in the document is the list of which parks will need 
mulch for each year and the quantities requested.   
 
RFQ’s will be accepted until April 8th, and a potential awarded bidder and contract will be 
brought forward to the board for approval after. 
 
John Hines 
Municipal Services Director 
jhines@ypsitownship.org 
734-544-3515 
 

mailto:jhines@ypsitownship.org


Request for Quotation:  Playground Mulch Contractor 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

INTRODUCTION 

This document sets forth the general specifications, requirements and responsibilities for a 
Playground Mulch Contractor in providing mulch spreading services for the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti in Ypsilanti, Michigan. 

GENERAL CONDITIONS AND SCOPE OF WORK 

A. Qualifications
Contractor must be duly licensed in accordance with all Federal, State and local laws
governing the Playground Mulch business.

B. Quality
The Playground Mulch contractor, hereinafter, referred to as “Contractor”, will provide
and perform all playground mulch services in a professional and timely manner as
further address in Section – Playground Mulch Specifications.

C. Coverage
The contractor is responsible for the delivery, labor and spreading of all playground
mulch as described in this project and throughout the Township.  All work shall be
performed in a professional manner, using quality equipment and materials, all of which
must be maintained and operated by the contractor.

D. General Conditions
The contractor will supply all labor, playground mulch equipment and safety equipment
in good working condition.

Contractor shall hold and save harmless the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, hereinafter
referred to as “Ypsilanti Township”, from all claims by others whose personnel or
property may be damaged or injured by Contractor, its employees or subcontractors
including, but not limited to, the use of equipment or materials.

Contractor shall make reasonable and prompt restitution by cash, replacement or
repairs, subject to the approval of Ypsilanti Township, for any damages for which the
Contractor is liable, of which Ypsilanti Township shall be sole judge.

Contractor shall ensure that its employees and agents conform to all Federal (OSHA),
State and Municipal safety and health regulations, and shall assume full responsibility
for any violations and/or non-compliance with such regulations.



Contractor shall ensure that all of its employees and agents abide by all safety rules and 
regulations, which may be promulgated from time to time by either party as they 
pertain to the Contractor’s operations.  Contractor will be responsible for regularly 
informing its employees of all Federal, State and/or local safety regulations.  

Contractor shall comply, at all times with any and all local, State or Federal rules, 
regulations and laws regarding anti-discrimination and equal opportunity in 
employment.    

Contractor shall at all times maintain good order among its employees and shall ensure 
compliance with Ypsilanti Township rules and regulations. 

Project inspections shall be made by the Contractor after each Playground Mulch 
project is completed and reviewed with an Ypsilanti Township, Residential Services 
Department representative at his or her request.   

PLAYGROUND MULCH SPECIFICATIONS 
It is best practice for Ypsilanti Township parks to be maintained on an annual basis for 
playground mulch applications.  These specifications include plans to add certified playground 
mulch throughout Ypsilanti Township parks facilities for which the Township is responsible.  The 
Contractor is responsible for the delivery, labor and spreading of all playground mulch as 
described in this project.  Please see below the parks and associated cubic yard measurements 
to be spread: 

2025 List: 
Bud and Blossom Park (1500 Bud Ave): 39 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Clubview Park (185 S. Clubview Dr):    59 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Community Center Park (2028 E. Clark Rd):    43 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Ford Lake Park (9075 S. Huron River Dr):    69 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Lakeside Park (9999 Textile Rd): 61 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Lakeview Park (2051 Grove Rd): 60 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Nancy Park (1205 Marcus Ave.): 57 Cubic Yards (3 inches) 
North Bay (1151 S. Huron St):   29 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Rambling Road Park(1150 Lexington Parkway): 39 cubic yards (3 inches) 
TOTAL CUBIC YARDS:  456 cubic yards 

2026 List: 
Appleridge Park (2899 E. Clark Rd):    45 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Burns Park (2001 Burns Ave):   55 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Clubview Park (185 S. Clubview Dr):    59 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Community Center Park (2028 E. Clark Rd): 43 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Ford Lake Park (9075 S. Huron River Dr):   69 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Harris Park (59 S. Harris Rd):        40 cubic yards (3 inches) 
Loonfeather Point Park (1320 Grove Rd): 50 cubic yards (3 inches) 
SugarbrookPark (1511 Andrea St.):  50 Cubic Yards (3 inches) 
North Bay (1151 S. Huron St):   29 cubic yards (3 inches) 
West Willow Park (2099 Tyler Rd):  55 cubic yards (3 inches) 
TOTAL CUBIC YARDS:  495 cubic yards 



A. General
a. Ypsilanti Township recognizes that unforeseen and unpredictable items occur

and must be addressed.  It is the Contractor’s responsibility to bring these items
to the attention of Ypsilanti Township.

b. All work shall be performed by properly supervised, trained personnel in
accordance with accepted mulch spreading practices.

c. Materials shall be applied in accordance with manufacturer’s directions.
d. Adequate personnel and equipment shall be provided to permit the timely

completion of all projects.
e. Any extra debris or material debris shall be removed from project areas at the

end of each project day at no additional charge.  Contractor shall not leave or
place any debris or material debris in public or private dumpsters or trash
receptacles.

f. Contractor is responsible for damage to any private property while completing
Playground Mulch projects (i.e. signs, lights, lawns, irrigation lines, etc.) resulting
from the Contractor’s services.  The Contractor is responsible for reporting all
damages to Ypsilanti Township in writing within seventy-two (72) hours of each
occurrence.

g. Contractor will provide phone numbers for foreman, supervisors and/or other
pertinent staff to Ypsilanti Township when work is being done.

h. Contractor will provide reports to Ypsilanti Township of work completion.

STANDARDS AND OTHER CONDITIONS 

A. Independent Contractor
The Contractor agrees to perform the work described in the quotation as an
Independent contractor and not as a subcontractor, agent, or employee of the Charter
Township of Ypsilanti.

B. Assignment and Subcontracting
The contract shall not be assigned or subcontracted by the Contractor without Ypsilanti
Township’s prior written consent, which may be withheld at Ypsilanti Township’s sole
discretion.

C. Revisions to original contract
Ypsilanti Township shall have the right to make any changes in, additions or delete
services from the work described in the contract and may direct the Contractor to
perform extra work and the Contractor shall implement such changes and perform extra
work.  Should any such changes increase, decrease or affect the amount of character of
services required in the contract, the price shall be adjusted accordingly.  The amount of
increase or decrease, if any, in the price shall be determined by agreement between the
Contractor and Ypsilanti Township.

D. Standards of work – General
All services shall be performed to the highest standard and in accordance with all
Federal, State and local laws.  The Contractor will be responsible for ensuring that its
staff are familiar with and accomplishes the functions and tasks as outlined in the
Specifications.

E. Contractor informed as to conditions



It is agreed that the Contractor is familiar with all physical and other conditions existing 
at Ypsilanti Township and all other matters in connection with the work to be performed 
under this contract. 

F. Storage and security of equipment and supplies
The Contractor shall have full responsibility for storing equipment and supplies used in
connection with the work.  No storage space will be provided by Ypsilanti Township.

G. Inspection
Ypsilanti Township contemplates and the Contractor hereby agrees to a thorough
inspection by Ypsilanti Township of all work and equipment furnished under this
contract.

H. Health and Safety
The Contractor shall observe all Federal, State and local laws and regulations pertaining
to health and safety.  The Contractor shall take all precautions necessary and shall be
responsible for all safety of all work to be performed by Contractor’s employees.  The
Contractor shall not require any person employed by the Contractor to work in
surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or
dangerous to this or her health or safety as determined under safety and health
standards promulgated by the U.S. Secretary of Labor.  The importance of safety of all
workers shall be recognized and accident prevention shall be an integral part of the
Contractor’s operation.  The Contractor shall conduct the work in a safe and practical
manner, in conformance with the safety and health standards made applicable to the
work by the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act.

I. Training
The Contractor will be solely responsible for ensuring that its employees are trained and
competent in the performance of their duties as outlined in the Specifications.

J. Billing
Playground mulch services will be priced on a per cubic yard basis and shall include all
equipment and supplies needed to perform within the contract.  All contractors are
required to complete and submit the Estimate Form (Attachments A).

The Contractor shall submit invoices according to the work being done by the
Contractor.  Work must be completed in order for Ypsilanti Township to process
invoices.

Payments for approved invoices shall be made by Ypsilanti Township within 30-45 days
following the billing date of such invoice.  Should Ypsilanti Township dispute the
contractor’s invoice, Ypsilanti Township shall advise the Contractor in writing of the
disputed invoice and withhold payment until the dispute is settled by both parties.

K. Equipment
The Contractor shall provide all equipment necessary for the effective and efficient
playground mulch services throughout Ypsilanti Township in accordance with the intent
of the Specifications.  All equipment shall be state-of-the-art and consistent with good
work practices.  All equipment shall be kept in working order at all times.



L. References
Each submission will provide at least two client references whose properties are
comparable in size, profile and services.  The information that is to be included for each
references includes the property description and address, the Contractor’s length of
service at the location and a contact name with job title and telephone number.

M. Insurance and Indemnity
Contractor will be responsible for the following insurance certificates per the Ypsilanti
Township contract provision checklist:

A. Workers Compensation - $1,000,000 Limit Each Accident
B. General Liability – Combined single limit of $1,000,000 each occurrence for

bodily injury & property damage.  Must include 60 day written notice for change
of coverage, cancellation or non-renewal of coverage.  Additional insured
language shall state:  “The Charter Township of Ypsilanti and its past, present
and future elected officials shall be named as ‘additional named insured’ on
the General Liability Policy with respect to the services provided under this
contract”

C. Automobile Liability – Covers owned, hired and non-owned vehicles with
personal protection insurance and property protection.  Includes residual liability
insurances with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 each accident for bodily
injury and property damage.

D. Umbrella Policy/Excess Coverage – May be used to cover everything

N. Contract Provisions
It is the intention of Ypsilanti Township to execute a one (1) year contract.  Ypsilanti
Township may terminate Contractor within 48 hours’ notice if Contract fails or refuses
to perform services as described in this Request for Quotation.

The contract must be reviewed by Ypsilanti Township legal counsel review and be
approved by the Ypsilanti Township Board of Directors. If the Township asses any
addenda, it will be posted on both ypsitownship.org and MITN.

O. Rejection of Quotation
The award will be made to that responsible vendor whose quotation, conforming to this
Request for Quotation, will be most advantageous to Ypsilanti Township, price and
other factors considered.  The Board of Trustees for the Charter Township of Ypsilanti
reserves the right to reject any and all responses to this Request for Quotation, in whole
or in part, and to waive informalities and minor irregularities in quotations received.

P. Minimum Quotation Response
By 2:00 p.m. on Tuesday, April 8, 2025, the Contractor shall remit two (2) originals of its
Quotation response to:

Ypsilanti Township Clerk’s Office 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 South Huron River Drive 



Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 

No fax copies will be accepted 
 
Quotation Responses must include Attachment A along with a current insurance 
certificate and list of references as described below. 

 
Questions regarding this Request for Quotations should be directed to Ypsilanti 
Township Clerk Debbie Swanson at 734-544-4000 or dswanson@ypsitownship.org by 
Friday, April 4, 2025.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:dswanson@ypsitownship.org


Attachment A 
 

ESTIMATE FORM 
2025-26 PLAYGROUND MULCH SERVICES 

 
Contractor:    _______________________________________ 
 
Primary Contact:   _______________________________________ 
 
Telephone #:  ________________________________________ 
 
Date Submitted: ________________________________________ 
 
 
 

 
 

Pricing Schedule 
 

2025 List: 
Bud and Blossom Park:  39 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Clubview Park:   59 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Community Center Park:   43 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Ford Lake Park:         69 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Lakeside Park:   61 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Lakeview Park:   60 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Nancy Park:    57 Cubic Yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
North Bay:     29 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Rambling Road Park:  39 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
 
TOTAL 2025 CUBIC YARDS:    456 cubic yards 
 
2026 List: 
Appleridge Park:  45 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Burns Park:   55 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Clubview Park:  59 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Community Center Park: 43 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Ford Lake Park:    69 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Harris Park:   40 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Loonfeather Point Park: 50 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
Sugarbrook Park:  50 Cubic Yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
North Bay Park:  29 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
West Willow Park:  55 cubic yards   $_____ per cubic yard = $_________ 
 
TOTAL 2026 CUBIC YARDS:    496 cubic yards 

 

TOTAL ESTIMATE FOR PLAYGROUND MULCH SERVICES:  $_______ 
 



 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS



ADJOURNMENT 


	March 18, 2025
	Departmental Reports
	Fire Department- March 2025
	Police Report-March 2025
	Hydro Report-March 2025
	Approval of Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes from March 4, 2025 Regular Board Meeting
	Statements and Checks-February 2025
	Treasurer's Report
	Attorney Report
	New Business
	1. Resolution 2025-03, Dawn Farm 16th Annual Ride for Recovery
	2. Resolution 2025-04, Sale of 724 S Ford Blvd
	3. Resolution 2025-05, Termination of Farmland Development Rights Agreement
	4. Resolution 2025-06, Boards and Commissions Appointments
	5. WCRC 2025 Agreement-Greene Farms
	6. Public Nuisance-5593 Justin Ct.
	7. Public Nuisance-1425 S Harris Rd.
	8. Budget Amendment #4
	Authorizations and Bids
	1. Bid-Vegetation and Blight Removal
	2. Bid-Playground Mulch Installation
	Other Business
	Public Comments
	Board Member Comments
	Adjournment

	LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PARCEL TO BE REMOVED Attach sheet if necessary: 
	Date: 


